WORKERS COMPENSATION RESEARCH INSTITUTE

2019 ANNUAL REPORT



1983 A Catalyst for Improving Workers' Compensation

35^{years}

2018



WHY WCRI?

OBJECTIVE DATA AND ANALYSIS

Founded in 1983, the Workers Compensation Research Institute (WCRI) is an independent, not-forprofit research organization that strives to help those interested in making improvements to the workers' compensation system by providing highly regarded objective data and analysis.

The Institute does not take positions on the issues it researches; rather, it provides information obtained through studies and data collection efforts that conform to recognized scientific methods. Objectivity is further ensured through rigorous, unbiased peer review procedures.

BALANCED, CREDIBLE RESEARCH USED BY:



Policymakers and other system stakeholders — employers, government, healthcare providers, insurers, labor unions, and service

providers — utilize WCRI's credible research to monitor state systems on a regular basis and to identify incremental changes to improve system performance. This results in a more enduring, efficient, and equitable system that better serves the needs of workers and employers.

lission

TO BE A CATALYST FOR SIGNIFICANT IMPROVEMENTS IN WORKERS' COMPENSATION SYSTEMS, PROVIDING THE PUBLIC WITH OBJECTIVE, CREDIBLE, HIGH-QUALITY RESEARCH ON IMPORTANT PUBLIC POLICY ISSUES.

CONTENTS

Letter from the President and CEO	2-3
Where Our Work Was Used	4-5
Research Spotlight	6-9
Studies Published in 2018	10
Presentations & Education	11 – 13
The Impact of Social Media	14
Media Coverage	15
By the Numbers	16
Giving Back	17
Member Spotlight	18
Governance	19
Members & Supporters	20-21

LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CEO



WCRI was created 35 years ago to address a lack of information about the performance of state workers' compensation systems. In its first year, the Institute published 4 studies and had 37 members. Today, we publish around 50 studies a year and enjoy the diverse support of 185 members made up of employers, government agencies, labor unions, insurers, services providers, and others.

Every year, WCRI's research is used by stakeholders in states all across the country. What set 2018 apart from previous years was the use of our work at the federal level. We were invited to testify before the U.S. House Subcommittee on Workforce Protections, which was evaluating opioid prescribing in the workers' compensation program for federal employees. Our work was also used by the U.S. House Committee on Small Business, which was assessing the opioid epidemic's impact on small businesses. In both hearings, our work was used to highlight trends in the prescribing of opioids to injured workers in the private sector and to show what states have done to respond to the epidemic and curtail unnecessary prescribing.

Opioids and prescription drugs were also an important issue this year at the state level. In Pennsylvania, Governor Tom Wolf used two of our studies — *Longer-Term Dispensing of Opioids, 4th Edition* and *The Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability* — in rolling out new guidelines to help prescribing providers determine the effective and appropriate use of opioids for injured workers. Our opioids and prescription drugs research was also used by policymakers and legislators in several states (Arizona, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, New York, and Pennsylvania) either in legislative hearings or communications. In addition, the National Council of Insurance Legislators passed a model act regarding the reimbursement and distribution of physician-dispensed drugs after receiving testimony on the subject from WCRI and other respected institutions.

Aside from the impact examples mentioned above, our many benchmarking studies — such as our CompScope™ Benchmarks and Medical Benchmarks studies, worker outcomes studies, and national inventories — continue to provide essential information to policymakers and system stakeholders, as they monitor the impact of reforms and compare the performance of their systems to those in other states.

Throughout our 35-year history, we have worked to push the envelope of our research to better understand state workers' compensation systems and identify emerging issues and trends. We look forward to continuing our work while avoiding taking positions or making policy recommendations. We thank our members for their generous support of our research and share this 35-year milestone with them. The Institute would not be where it is today without their help.

Respectfully yours,

Waluse

John Ruser, Ph.D. President and CEO

WHERE OUR WORK WAS USED

National: Ramona Tanabe, executive vice president and counsel of WCRI, testified before the U.S. House Subcommittee on Workforce Protections at a hearing on the opioid epidemic's implications for the Federal Employees' Compensation Act. During the hearing, Ms. Tanabe summarized findings from WCRI's opioid research and fielded many questions about how states address opioid prescribing.

National: The U.S. House Committee on Small Business held a hearing to explore the effects of the opioid crisis on small businesses. The committee's staff released a memo before the hearing that cited our research.

MS. TANABE

National: WCRI's opioid research was cited in an article, "Occupational Patterns in Unintentional and Undetermined Drug-Involved and Opioid-Involved Overdose Deaths — United States, 2007–2012," featured in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's *Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (MMWR)*.

National: The National Council of Insurance Legislators (NCOIL) passed a model act on physician dispensing. In past years, NCOIL had invited WCRI to share our research with them on this important issue. Recently, NCOIL invited WCRI to provide analysis of how states had addressed the issue in light of their proposed model act.

National: WCRI's study on longer-term use of opioids was cited by the National Safety Council in a fact sheet for employers on how prescription drugs may be affecting their workers' compensation programs. This year, The Hartford and Shatterproof featured this fact sheet in a new website they launched to close the knowledge gap about opioids; break the stigma of addiction; and foster prevention, treatment, and recovery.

Arizona: WCRI's research on physician dispensing was cited by numerous stakeholders during a public hearing held by the Industrial Commission of Arizona on whether to adopt additional reimbursement guidelines for medications dispensed in settings that are not accessible to the general public.

Georgia: Chairman Frank McKay of the Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation sent the U.S. Attorney for Northern Georgia a letter regarding the inappropriate and over-prescribing of opioids to injured workers in the state. The letter included findings from three WCRI studies.

Hawaii: During a hearing on Senate Bill 2358/House Bill 1631, WCRI's studies, *Are Physician Dispensing Reforms Sustainable?* and *Physician Dispensing of Higher-Priced New Drug Strengths and Formulation*, were cited. The legislation was filed to limit physician-dispensed prescription drugs in workers' compensation claims to 30 days from the work injury date, as well as to lower the reimbursement rates of prescription drugs in workers' compensation claims.

Illinois: WCRI's study, *The Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability,* was cited in a joint lawsuit against opioid manufacturers, distributors, and prescribers. The complaint was filed by two Illinois-based self-insurance pools that provide workers' compensation insurance to over 200 local municipalities.

Massachusetts: Two of WCRI's opioid studies, *Interstate* Variations in Use of Opioids, 4th Edition and Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability, were cited in an issue brief for a forum on "Opioids in the Workforce" by the Massachusetts Health Policy Forum.

Massachusetts: At a meeting, the Workers' Compensation Advisory Council proposed changes to raise the level of the medical fee schedule. Several members, on both sides of the issue, cited findings from WCRI's fee schedule and worker outcomes studies.

Minnesota: Findings from WCRI's CompScope™ Medical Benchmarks for Minnesota, 19th Edition, were used in the Annual State of the Market presentation by the Minnesota Workers' Compensation Insurance Association.

New York: Assemblywoman Kimberly Jean-Pierre cited our study, *The Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability,* during debate on Assembly Bill A11028, which she sponsored. The purpose of the bill, which passed the New York Assembly, was to ensure adequate compensation for the surviving beneficiaries of injured workers who died as a result of an opioid overdose.

Pennsylvania: WCRI conducted and published a study on the impact of Pennsylvania physician-dispensing reforms after receiving a request from the Pennsylvania Bureau of Workers' Compensation.

Pennsylvania: House Speaker Mike Turzai mentioned our opioid research during a press conference to promote Senate Bill 936, which would require the Pennsylvania Department of Labor & Industry to adopt an evidencebased drug formulary for workers' compensation claims.

Pennsylvania: In the rollout of new opioid guidelines for workers' compensation, Governor Tom Wolf cited a finding from WCRI's study, *Longer-Term Dispensing of Opioids, 4th Edition.* Another one of our studies, *The Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability,* was also cited in the new opioid guidelines.

Wisconsin: At a hearing on Senate Bill (SB) 665, various stakeholder groups (business, labor, medical, and regulatory) cited WCRI's CompScope™ Benchmarks and Medical Benchmarks for Wisconsin, worker outcomes studies, and other reports. SB 665 included various changes, including a proposal for a medical fee schedule, additional increases in maximum weekly payments for permanent partial disability benefits, and provisions related to opioid prescribing.

5

RESEARCH SPOTLIGHT



OYMENT

DATE OF ACCIDENT

BRA FORMER IN

Please list b

B

DIAGNOS

WCRI FLASHREPORT: COMPARING PAYMENTS TO AMBULATORY SURGERY CENTERS AND HOSPITAL OUTPATIENT DEPARTMENTS

Some studies indicate that ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs) provide care that is less expensive than services provided in hospitals. This study compares payments for similar knee and shoulder surgeries performed on injured workers in ASCs with hospital outpatient departments. This analysis is important because evidence about ASC surgeries from other payors (Medicare or group health insurance) may not apply in workers' compensation settings.

Visit our website to learn more.

THE IMPACT OF OPIOID PRESCRIPTIONS ON DURATION OF **TEMPORARY DISABILITY**

The study examines the effect of opioid prescriptions on the duration of temporary disability benefits among workers with work-related low back injuries. While medical practice guidelines often advise against routine (i.e., nonsurgical) use of opioids to treat low back injuries, opioid use in nonsurgical lower back cases is common.

Visit our website to learn more.

WCRI FLASHREPORT — TIME FROM INJURY TO MEDICAL TREATMENT: HOW STATES COMPARE

This study examines interstate differences in the time from injury to first medical treatment among injured workers. It focuses on the median number of days from injury to first medical treatment by type of provider, service, and injury across 18 study states. While the study was not designed to explain why differences in the timing of medical services exist, it offers some factors that may influence the differences, including workers' compensation policy choices.

Visit our website to learn more.

MONITORING TRENDS IN THE NEW YORK WORKERS' COMPENSATION SYSTEM, 2018 EDITION

This is the 11th annual report to regularly track key metrics of the performance of the New York workers' compensation system after implementation of the following statutory changes enacted in March 2007:

- increased maximum statutory benefits
- limited the number of weeks of permanent partial disability (PPD) benefits
- implemented medical treatment guidelines ٠
- adopted a fee schedule for pharmaceuticals ٠
- established networks for diagnostic services and thresholds for ٠ preauthorization
- enacted administrative changes to increase the speed of resolving disputes

Visit our website to learn more.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION MEDICAL COST CONTAINMENT: **A NATIONAL INVENTORY, 2018**

This study provides policymakers and system stakeholders with an inventory of the cost containment initiatives employed by all 50 states, the District of Columbia, and two U.S. federal programs (Federal Employees' Compensation Act, and the Longshore and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act). The report contains key features of each jurisdiction's cost containment initiatives, such as:

- medical fee schedules
- regulation of hospital charges
- choice of provider
- treatment guidelines •
- utilization review/management
- managed care
- pharmaceutical regulations
- urgent care and ambulatory surgery center fee schedules
- medical dispute regulations

Visit our website to learn more.









RESEARCH SPOTLIGHT (continued)



WORKERS' COMPENSATION PRESCRIPTION DRUG REGULATIONS: **A NATIONAL INVENTORY, 2018**

Across the country, states are grappling with an array of regulatory strategies, overseen by different agencies, to address the prescribing of medicine. This report provides policymakers and system stakeholders with a basic understanding of the strategies adopted by all 50 states and points to the regulations for those seeking more detail. The report also provides tables about some of the most prominent prescription drug issues stakeholders were concerned about in 2018, such as:

- Rules for Limiting and Monitoring Opioid Prescriptions
- Medical Marijuana Regulations
- Workers' Compensation Drug Formularies
- Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs
- Price Regulations for Pharmacy- and Physician-Dispensed Drugs
- Drug Testing Regulations

Visit our website to learn more.

COMPSCOPE™ MEDICAL BENCHMARKS AND COMPSCOPE™ **BENCHMARKS**

The flagship of WCRI's benchmarks reports comprehensively measure the performance of 18 different state workers' compensation systems, how they compare with each other, and how they have changed over time.

The reports are designed to help policymakers and others benchmark state system performance or a company's workers' compensation program. The benchmarks also provide an excellent baseline for tracking the effectiveness of policy changes and identifying important trends.

The medical editions, in particular, examine how income benefits, overall medical payments, costs, use of benefits, duration of disability, litigiousness, benefit delivery expenses, timeliness of payment, and other metrics of system performance have changed over time.

Visit our website to learn more.

NC TX CI AR MIN GA IN NI MA PA TN WI IL

See See

2%

China With > 7 Days Of Loss Time At 12 Months Of Experience, Net Adjusted For In

50

21

And the second s

8

OR

Learn more about these studies and other important research at www.wcrinet.org

Medical Payments/Claim Decreased 6%/Year In

NC 2013-2016, More Than All Other Study States

Ohanger Of Lesia Than 3%/ Year From 2013/14 To 2016/17

STUDIES PUBLISHED IN 2018

SOME OF THE STUDIES WE PUBLISHED LAST YEAR:

- Comparing Outcomes for Injured Workers, 2017 Interviews (3 individual state reports — Minnesota, Pennsylvania, and Tennessee)
- CompScope[™] Benchmarks, 18th Edition (16 individual state reports)
- CompScope[™] Medical Benchmarks, 19th Edition (16 individual state reports)
- Correlates of Opioid Dispensing
- Hospital Outpatient Payment
 Index: Interstate Variations and
 Policy Analysis, 7th Edition
- Monitoring Physician Dispensing Reforms in Pennsylvania
- Monitoring Trends in the New York Workers' Compensation System, 2018 Edition
- Payments to Ambulatory Surgery Centers in Georgia
- The Impact of Opioid Prescriptions on Duration of Temporary Disability
- WCRI FlashReport: Comparing Payments to Ambulatory Surgery Centers and Hospital Outpatient Departments
- WCRI FlashReport: Texas-Like Formulary for Louisiana State Employees
- WCRI FlashReport Time from Injury to Medical Treatment: How States Compare
- WCRI Medical Price Index for Workers' Compensation, 10th Edition (MPI-WC)
- Workers' Compensation Medical Cost Containment: A National Inventory, 2018
- Workers' Compensation Prescription Drug Regulations: A National Inventory, 2018



WCRI's studies fall into two categories: topical and core benchmark studies.

The Institute's topical studies focus on the major current public policy issues and long-term challenges confronting workers' compensation systems. The studies evaluate the impact of recent reforms and identify emerging trends and issues; actions and policies that improve disability and medical management; and key leverage points to improve system performance.

The core benchmark studies are the central research program at the Institute, with our CompScope™ Benchmarks reports as the flagship. From medical costs to worker outcomes, the studies in this program examine the changes in performance of individual state systems and provide meaningful interstate comparisons.

With these studies, stakeholders, public officials, and policymakers can monitor their systems on a regular basis and make important interstate comparisons. By identifying incremental changes in system performance — trends that may signal either improvement or deterioration — they can also set goals, make improvements, and avoid crises.

Like all of WCRI's research, studies are free for members and can be downloaded from our website: www.wcrinet.org

PRESENTATIONS

RESEARCH PRESENTED AT CONFERENCES

Every year, WCRI staff are invited to present our research at large conferences across the country. This is a sample of the conferences and venues we were invited to present at during the past year.

- 15th Annual Worker's Compensation Insurance ExecuSummit
- 17th Annual Pennsylvania Workers' Compensation Conference
- 2018 Annual Meeting of the American Economic Association
- 2018 Casualty Actuarial Society's Annual Meeting
- 2018 Comp Laude[®] Awards and Gala
- 2018 Montana Governor's Conference
- 2018 National Council of Self-Insurers Annual Meeting
- 2018 National Workers' Compensation and Disability Conference[®] & Expo
- 21st Tennessee Bureau of Workers' Compensation Education Conference
- American Bar Association's 2018 Midwinter Seminar & Conference of the Workers' Compensation Committee
- Casualty Actuarial Society's 2018 Casualty Loss
 Reserve Seminar
- Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation Annual Conference
- IAIABC's 104th Convention
- Kentucky CompEd 27th Annual Workers'
 Compensation Seminar
- National Academy of Social Insurance's (NASI) 2018 Annual Membership Meeting
- RIMS 2018 Conference & Exhibition
- XVIII ORP (Occupational Risk Prevention) International Conference 2018

EDUCATING DIVERSE GROUPS

Here is a sample of the diverse groups with whom we shared our research over the past year.

- Arkansas Rehabilitation Services
- Chairman's Advisory Council, Medical Subcommittee, of the Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation
- Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation
- Illinois Office of the Governor
- Insurance Federation of Pennsylvania
- Massachusetts House of Representatives
- Massachusetts Workers' Compensation Advisory
 Council
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
- Pennsylvania Bureau of Workers' Compensation
- Pennsylvania Workers' Compensation Advisory Council
- Tennessee Bureau of Workers' Compensation
- Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission Medical Fee Schedule Regulatory Advisory Panel
- Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development
- Worker's Compensation Board of Indiana
- Workers' Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau of Massachusetts

PRESENTATIONS & EDUCATION (continued)



ANNUAL CONFERENCE

More photos from the event can be seen on our Facebook Page: www.facebook.com/WCRIpage Registration for our 34th annual conference in March of 2018 increased by 20 percent. The conference agenda was a huge hit due to its exciting and informational sessions, including a keynote discussion about the future of labor force trends and the impact of technology by Dr. Erica L. Groshen, former head of the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. The theme of the conference was "Work and the Comp System: Evolution, Disruption, and the Future."

WEBINARS

Every year, we hold several webinars on our research. Our members, as well as nonmembers, find these of great value since they receive a highlevel understanding of the research, and are able to ask questions about what they are learning.

All the webinars we hold are recorded and available on our website for members and nonmembers. This is just another way we are making it easier for members and non-members alike to learn about our research in a format and time convenient for them.

This is a sample of the topics our webinars covered over the past year, as well as the number of policymakers who registered for them.

- In November, we held a webinar that highlighted a shift in where injured workers receive medical care. Of the 203 who registered for it, 46 were policymakers.
- In September, we held a webinar about the impact of Pennsylvania's physician-dispensing reform. Of the 178 who registered for it, 29 were policymakers.
- In June, we held a webinar to discuss findings from our study on the impact of opioid prescriptions on duration of temporary disability. Of the 373 who registered for it, 72 were policymakers.
- In January, we hosted a webinar about our latest research on changes to hospital reimbursement in four states. Of the 195 who registered for it, 36 were policymakers.





VIDEOS

With video increasingly becoming the preferred way to absorb information, we now maintain a YouTube channel with video releases in conjunction with our reports. In additon, a video about the benefits of becoming a member of WCRI, as well as another about attending our annual conference, can be accessed through our website: **www.wcrinet.org**.

THE IMPACT OF SOCIAL MEDIA

Since 2011, WCRI has maintained a strong presence across the most popular social media channels. On platforms such as Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn, Google+, and YouTube, the Institute disseminates accurate news and information to a broad audience interested in workers' compensation issues and research.

Followers at the end of 2018:

- Twitter: 3,000+
- LinkedIn: 1,000+
- Facebook: 400+





MEDIA COVERAGE

This past year, our research was mentioned more than 600 times in newspapers and blogs all across the country. This is a sample of the news organizations that covered our research.





Opioids Might Not Be Useful for Injured Workers in the First Place

New York Post | April 24, 2018 Maria LaMagna, Marketwatch

The relationship between opioids and the number of Americans in the workplace is looking increasingly complicated.

America's opioid addiction crisis is devastating families and costing the country billions of dollars. And yet when used to treat pain appropriately, opioids can also help people — especially women — stay in the workforce, when they would have otherwise dropped out, a recent study from Princeton University concluded.

But how do opioids affect workers' compensation after they're injured on the job? That's the question asked by a new study from researchers at the Workers Compensation Research Institute in Cambridge, Mass., the Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital in Lebanon, N.H. and the Department of Economics at the University of California, Irvine.

What they found: Longer-term use of opioids roughly tripled the amount of money employers spent on temporary disability benefits ... (continued online)

To read the entire article, visit https://nypost.com/2018/04/24/ opioids-might-not-be-useful-forinjured-workers-in-the-first-place/

BY THE NUMBERS

WCRI believes in corporate social responsibility — whether it is giving back to our community or protecting the environment for future generations - and supported such efforts with ongoing and new initiatives in 2018.

THE ENVIRONMENT: WCRI continues to make our reports available online versus printing hard copies. In the event that we printed hard copies, such as our annual report, we used recycled paper.

SOCIAL INITIATIVES: WCRI contributes both time and money to causes such as Cradles to Crayons, Greater Boston Food Bank, and Kids' Chance.





ON TWITTER

NUMBER OF PEOPLE WHO **REGISTERED FOR OUR WEBINARS**

1,200+

NUMBER OF MENTIONS



 \square

70 +

NUMBER OF BRIEFINGS AND PRESENTATIONS TO EXTERNAL AUDIENCES

47 PUBLISHED STUDIES



WCRI staff volunteered at The Greater Boston Food Bank (GBFB), where we helped sort, pack, label, and distribute 11,002 pounds of food, which translates to 9,168 meals for hungry families across Eastern Massachusetts.



NUMBER OF



185

ORGANIZATIONS THAT ARE MEMBERS



GIVING BACK

WCRI donates \$2 for every completed post-webinar and conference feedback survey to Kids' Chance, resulting in over \$8,000 in cash donations to date - to benefit children affected by a parent's work-related injury or death, so they can pursue their educational dreams without financial burden.

> "It's high time that the ideal of success should be replaced by the ideal of service." - Albert Einstein

"Our work has changed lives forever, for the better. Together, we will

MEMBER SPOTLIGHT

WCRI invites members to provide quarterly feedback about the value they derive from membership. This question received the following responses.

WHAT VALUE DO YOU DERIVE FROM BEING A MEMBER OF WCRI?

"I know the WCRI can be counted on to provide the hard, independent, and factual data we need to make good decisions in this time of ever-changing dynamics. The WCRI is an important and valued partner of all stakeholders in the field of workers' compensation. As chair of the labor side of the Advisory Council, I rely on the broad scope of data and research provided by the WCRI to make informed decisions on behalf of injured workers in Wisconsin."

> Stephanie Bloomingdale, President, Wisconsin AFL-CIO

"Being included in WCRI's CompScope™ Benchmarks studies has provided useful data and information in the analysis of our Georgia Medical Fee Schedule that we publish annually. Since Georgia is a large workers' compensation state in terms of premiums paid and benefits paid, the CompScope™ studies that compare regional and nationwide payment data are useful for comparison. The payment data and use of it by WCRI in preparing analytical reports help us in our policymaking decisions in furthering our goals of providing a fair and balanced workers' compensation system and ensuring injured workers have access to quality medical treatment at a reasonable price to the employer."

> Frank McKay, Chairman, Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation



To read more of these interviews, visit <u>https://</u> <u>www.wcrinet.org/news/</u> <u>member-spotlight</u> "WCRI is a unique organization that invites members from all aspects of the workers' compensation system to participate: employers, providers, state agencies, worker advocates, labor unions, and insurance carriers. These broad perspectives bring significant value and rich texture to the research outcomes. As an 'actuary,' I am naturally biased toward data and the information they provide. As a trained 'quantitative analyst,' I recognize the challenge of data management and believe that WCRI's research methods create significant credibility and trust for their work products. Because of the various state flavors of workers' compensation regulations, it is important to have benchmarks at this granular level. WCRI is an excellent source of detailed data. As an insurance carrier, we are diligently managing workplace injuries for our customers' employees. We also evaluate our overall effectiveness at managing various types of claims, medical utilization, and indemnity benefits. Another way WCRI provides us with broader industry experience."

> Donna Glenn, SVP, Casualty Product Manager, Liberty Mutual

GOVERNANCE

The responsibility for policymaking rests with the Institute's board of directors — a representative group of members who are elected by the membership for staggered three-year terms and meet three times a year. Operating responsibility is vested by the board in the president and CEO, with direction from the board and advice from committees established by the board.

The Research Committee, composed of representatives of member companies, gives the president and CEO guidance on the Institute's research program.

The Disability and Medical Management Board provides guidance to the president and CEO, as well as funding for issues related to disability and medical management.

Project advisory committees assist the research staff in the formulation and conduct of specific studies. These committees are made up of representatives of member companies, public officials, academic researchers, and others knowledgeable about the specific topics before them.

BOARD

Steve Perroots, Marriott International, Inc. - Chair Shelley Boyce, MedRisk, Inc. - Vice Chair Russell J. Pass, Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc. - Vice Chair Jon E. Stewart, Kentucky Employers' Mutual Insurance - Treasurer Thomas Nowak, AIG Peter D. McCarron, CNA Andrea Gardner, The Hartford Financial Services Group Donna Glenn, Liberty Mutual Insurance Janine Kral, Nordstrom, Inc. Vince Donnelly, The PMA Insurance Group Darrell Brown, Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. Cristina Dobleman, Stanford University Vincent Armentano, The Travelers Companies, Inc. Joan Vincenz, United Airlines Mike Fenlon, United Parcel Service David Stills, Walmart, Inc. Susan Gordon, Zurich North America



RESEARCH COMMITTEE

Michele Adams, The Walt Disney World Company Denise Zoe Algire, Albertsons Companies Kevin Brady, The PMA Insurance Group Suzanne M. Emmet, Eastern Alliance Insurance Group David Gamble, The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. Michael Gavin, Injured Workers Pharmacy, LCC Dan Hunt, D.O., AF Group Jayashree Ishwar, Amerisure Mutual Insurance Co. Martin T. King, Kaiser Permanente Craig Ross, D.O., Liberty Mutual Group John Smolk, Southern California Edison Margues Torbert, Ametros Jacob Wein, The Travelers Companies, Inc. Jeffrey Austin White, Gallagher Bassett Richard Wood, Sentry Insurance

DISABILITY AND MEDICAL MANAGEMENT BOARD

Joanne Moynihan, The Travelers Companies, Inc. – Chair Mary O'Donoghue, MedRisk, Inc. - Vice Chair Peter Macdonald, AIG Marcos Iglesias, M.D., Broadspire Julia Stenberg, CNA Insurance Companies Anne M. Levins, Coventry Workers' Comp Services Peter Madeja, GENEX Services, Inc. Larry Emory, The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. Daryl Corr, Healthesystems, LLC Dawn Goree, The Home Depot, Inc. Frank C. Radack Jr., Liberty Mutual Insurance Cy King, Medata, Inc. Mike Cirillo, myMatrixx Kent Spafford, One Call Care Management David Young, Optum John Watts, Paradigm Outcomes Kimberly George, Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. Kim Haugaard, Texas Mutual Insurance Company Nina McIlree, M.D., Zurich North America

MEMBERS & SUPPORTERS

AS OF 1/1/2019

Employers

Ahold USA Albertsons Companies American Electric Power Company Big Lots, Inc. Bimbo Bakeries USA Chevron Corporation Costco Wholesale E. & J. Gallo Winery Grimmway Enterprises, Inc. Johns Hopkins University Kaiser Permanente Macy's Marriott International Mayo Clinic Nordstrom, Inc. Publix Super Markets, Inc. Raytheon Company The Sherwin-Williams Company Southern California Edison Stanford University United Airlines United Parcel Service Vanderbilt University Walmart, Inc. The Walt Disney Company

Service Providers

Alaris Group Allen & Gooch, A Law Corporation Ametros Aon Risk Services, Inc. Bardavon Health Innovations, LLC Carisk Partners CCMSI Chronovo, Inc. CONCENTRA, Inc. Conduent CORA Health Services, Inc. CorVel Corporation Coventry Workers' Comp Services Equian Evedent ExamWorks Clinical Solutions Express Scripts FAIR Health, Inc.

First MCO, Inc. Gallagher Bassett Services, Inc. GENEX Services, Inc. Goodman McGuffey LLP Healthesystems Horizon Casualty Services Injured Workers Pharmacy, LLC (IWP) Integro Insurance Brokers Lockton Companies Marsh McConnaughhay, Coonrod, Pope, Weaver & Stern, P.A. Medcor, Inc. MedRisk, Inc. Minute Men HR Mitchell International MKCM, Inc. MTI America Nexus Medical Nova Medical Centers Origami Risk Partners Healthcare Planned Administrators, Inc. Public Consulting Group, Inc. QTC Management, Inc. R3 Continuum Restore Rehabilitation LLC **Rising Medical Solutions** Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. Trean Corporation Tristar Insurance Group VGM Homelink Willis Towers Watson

Insurers

York Risk Services Group

AF Group AIG Amerisure Insurance Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies BITCO Insurance Companies California State Compensation Insurance Fund CNA Insurance Eastern Alliance Insurance Group Employers Mutual Casualty Company **Everest National Insurance Company**

The Hartford Insurance Group Kentucky Employers' Mutual Insurance Liberty Mutual Group Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co. of America New Jersey Manufacturers Insurance Company New Mexico Mutual Casualty Company, Inc. The PMA Group Property Casualty Insurers Association of America Safety National Selective Insurance Company of America, Inc. Sentry Insurance Society Insurance The Travelers Companies, Inc. Zenith Insurance Company Zurich North America Reinsurer

ILT Re

Contributor

American Insurance Association

Associate Members – Rating Organizations

Compensation Advisory Organization of Michigan

Indiana Compensation Rating Bureau Massachusetts Workers' Compensation Rating & Inspection Bureau

Minnesota Workers' Compensation Insurers Association

New Jersey Compensation Rating & Inspection Bureau

New York Compensation Insurance Rating Board

North Carolina Rate Bureau

Pennsylvania Compensation Rating Bureau Wisconsin Compensation Rating Bureau

Associate Members – Public Sector United States

Alabama Department of Labor, Workers' **Compensation Division** Alaska Division of Workers' Compensation Arizona Industrial Commission Arkansas Workers' Compensation Commission

California Commission on Health and Safety and Workers' Compensation

California Division of Workers' Compensation Colorado Department of Labor and Employment

-Workers' Compensation Division Connecticut Workers' Compensation Commission

Delaware Office of Workers' Compensation District of Columbia Office of Workers' Compensation

Florida Department of Financial Services. Division of Workers' Compensation Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation

Hawaii Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, Disability Compensation Division Idaho Industrial Commission

Illinois Workers' Compensation Commission

Iowa Division of Workers' Compensation Kansas Department of Human Resources/ Division of Workers' Compensation Kentucky Department of Workers' Claims

Louisiana Department of Insurance Louisiana Office of Risk Management Louisiana Office of Workers' Compensation

Administration Maine Workers' Compensation Board

Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission

Massachusetts Center for Health Information and Analysis

Massachusetts Department of Industrial Accidents

Massachusetts Human Resources Division, Workers' Compensation Section

Massachusetts State Rating Bureau, Division of Insurance

Michigan Workers' Compensation Agency

Minnesota Department of Labor and Industry Mississippi Workers' Compensation Commission

Montana Department of Labor & Industry National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH)

Nebraska Workers' Compensation Court Nevada Department of Business and Industry, Division of Industrial Relations, Workers' **Compensation Section**

New Hampshire Department of Labor

New Hampshire Insurance Department

New Jersey Compensation Rating & Inspection Bureau

New Mexico Workers' Compensation Administration

New York State Workers' Compensation Board

Oregon Department of Consumer & Business Services Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training South Carolina Workers' Compensation Commission South Dakota Department of Labor and Regulation Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Texas Department of Insurance, Division of Workers' Compensation Texas State Office of Risk Management United States Department of Labor Utah Labor Commission, Industrial Accidents Division Vermont Department of Labor Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission West Virginia Offices of the Insurance

Commissioner Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development

Associate Members – Labor Organizations

(CISCO)

Commission

Indiana AFL-CIO Indiana, Illinois, Iowa Foundation for Fair Contracting (IIIFFC) Kentucky AFL-CIO Massachusetts AFL-CIO Minnesota AFL-CIO Office and Professional Employees International Union (OPEIU), Local 105 Professional Fire Fighters of New Hampshire

Tennessee AFI-CIO United Auto Workers, Local 3520 Wisconsin AFL-CIO

Associate Members – Public Sector International

British Columbia Workers' Compensation Board (WorkSafe BC) Manitoba Workers Compensation Board New Brunswick Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission ReturntoWorkSA Safe Work Australia State Insurance Regulatory Authority (SIRA)

WorkCover Queensland

Oklahoma Workers' Compensation

Canadian Union of Public Employees Construction Industry Service Corporation

CompScope™ Funders

Compensation Advisory Organization of Michigan Florida Department of Financial Services, Division of Workers' Compensation Georgia State Board of Workers' Compensation Illinois Workers' Compensation Commission Indiana Compensation Rating Bureau Louisiana Department of Insurance Massachusetts Workers' Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau Minnesota Workers' Compensation Insurers Association New Jersey Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau New York Compensation Insurance Rating Board North Carolina Rate Bureau Pennsylvania Compensation Rating Bureau Tennessee Department of Labor & Workforce Development Texas Department of Insurance Virginia Workers' Compensation Commission Wisconsin Compensation Rating Bureau

Disability and Medical Management Research Funders

AIG

Broadspire **CNA** Insurance Companies Coventry Workers' Comp Services GENEX Services, Inc. Healthesystems, LLC Liberty Mutual Insurance Medata, Inc. MedRisk, Inc. myMatrixx One Call Care Management Optum Paradigm Outcomes Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. Texas Mutual Insurance Company The Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. The Home Depot, Inc. The Travelers Companies, Inc. Zurich North America







Workers Compensation Research Institute 955 Massachusetts Avenue Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139 617-661-WCRI (9274) • www.wcrinet.org

